Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact

A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, September 24, 2013
At
5:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940

Posting Date: 09-19-13



Light and Power Board 2 September 24, 2013
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together
to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board, staff or the public
may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and placed elsewhere on the agenda
for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically respected. If an item is not removed firom the
consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single Board action
adopting the consent calendar.

None.

Items Removed from the Consent Calendar

None.

3. Unfinished Business

None.

4. New Business

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 10, 2013. (p. 3)

b. Consideration of authorizing a Tree Trimming Services Agreement with Penn Line.
(Arends/Watson) (p. 6)

5. Appointments

None.

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.

1. Lansing Board of Water & Light Contract Power Purchase —2014. (Arends/Bob
Dyer) (p. 9)

2. Report on outage feedback survey. (Wheaton) (p. 34)
c. From Board.

7. Public Comment
/st




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, September 10, 2013

Board Members -
Present: Barbara Budros, Jim Carruthers, Jan Geht, Jeff Palisin, Bob Spence,
John Taylor, Patrick McGuire
Ex Officio Member -

Present: Jered Ottenwess, City Manager

Others:

CARRIED unammously :

from the Consent Calendar

Items removed
None.

Item 3 on the Agenda"l;éing,z()ld Business

None.

Item 4 on the Agenda being New Business

4(a). Consideration of authorizing a Resolution to Amend City Ordinance — Lien & Tampering
as civil infraction.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Tim Arends, Executive Director

Jered Ottenwess, City Manager
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 September 10, 2013

Moved by Carruthers, seconded by Palisin, that the Light and Power Board adopts the Resolution
to Request the City Commission Amend Section 1046 of the Traverse City Code of Ordinances.

CARRIED unanimously.
4(b). Consideration of removing the PCR cap.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller

Moved by Palisin, seconded by Spence, that the Light and Power Board approves lifting the PCR

cap for residential and commercial customers effective October 1,2013.

The following individuals from the public addressff
Rick Buckhalter, 932 Kelley Street, Ratep
CARRIED unanimously.

Item 5 on the Agenda being Appointments

None.

W. Peter Doren; General Counsel

Chairman McGuire announced the board would hear general public comment at this time,
before moving on to agenda item 6(B)2.

Public Comment:

Mayor Michael Estes, Ratepayer
Rick Buckhalter, 932 Kelley Street, Ratepayer

6:43 p.m. Chairman McGuire called the Board at ease.
6:45 p.m. Chairman McGuire called the meeting to order.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 September 10, 2013

2. Tim Arends and Steve VanderMeer, Hometown Connections (via conference call),
spoke re: strategic planning focus groups and survey.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Jessica Wheaton, Marketing & Community Relations Coordinator
3. Jessica Wheaton spoke re: the Historic Barns Geothermal Heating & Cooling System.
C. From Board.

1. Barbara Budros spoke re: opinions drafted by the City Attorney regarding the coal
dock.

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Comment

No one from the public commented.

There being no objection, Chairman McGuire declar,,e,déthe‘meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m.

/st




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 24, 2013

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: September 16, 2013

Subject: Tree Trimming Services Agreement

On April 23, 2013 the Board approved a three year contract with Trees, Inc. for line
clearance and other tree trimming services for TCL&P. As you know, one of their
employees died from direct contact with the primary distribution line on August 7,2013.

Due to the nature of the incident | suspended Trees, Inc. while TCL&P and others
conducted investigations into the cause of the incident. TCL&P’s investigation
determined that the employee violated safe distance requirements from the primary
voltage line, and used climbing spikes on the tree that he was in when he died. Both of
these violations are a violation of the Agreement between Trees, Inc. and TCL&P and
are deemed “material” breaches of contract, as stated in the Agreement.

As follow-up to this finding in the investigation, | had employees view other trees that
were recently trimmed by Trees, Inc. and they provided me with photographic evidence
of several trees that climbing spikes were used. The company was on notice that
climbing spikes were not permitted without prior written consent of TCL&P; in addition,
that part of the Agreement was reinforced in person on day one with the crew that was
working on TCL&P'’s system.

For the above reason, and because Trees, Inc. did not adequately provide for the
safety of its employees, | have terminated the Agreement between TCL&P and Trees,
Inc. in a letter dated September 17, 2013 addressed to the company's attorney.

Attached is a memorandum from Blake Wilson indicating that Penn Line Services, Inc.
has agreed to honor its original bid which was $1,830.40 more than Trees, Inc. The
utility needs these services to recommence, and Penn Line Services was the most
recent company performing these services for TCL&P and performed well for the utility
for the past two years.

Staff recommends selecting Penn Line Service, Inc. as they are the next low bidder for
the defined work scope. If the Board is in agreement the following motion would be
appropriate:

(RECOMMENDED MOTION ON NEXT PAGE)




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 24, 2013

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN AND THE SECRETARY TO ENTER
INTO A THREE YEAR TREE TRIMMING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PENN LINE
SERVICES INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $442,457.60; SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO
SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND AS TO FORM BY GENERAL
COUNSEL.




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Tim Arends, Executive Director
From: Blake Wilson, System Engineer
Date: September 16, 2013

Subject: Tree Trimming Services Agreement

| spoke with Dennis Nelson on 9-10-13 and he agreed to honof the original bid that
Penn Line Services Inc. submitted to Traverse City Light and Power for the three
year contract period.

Bids have been obtained for tree trimming services on Traverse City Light & Power’s
(TCL&P) utility system for 2013-2017 (3 years). Bid pricing was at an hourly rate for a
two person crew with truck, chipper and other related equipment for the purpose of line
clearance tree trimming. TCL&P’s electric distribution, transmission and fiber system
are to be trimmed under this contract. Requests were sent out to seven companies and
bids were received as follows:

Time and Material Costs

Bidder 3 Year Total Year 1 Year2 Year3
Trees Inc. $440,627.20 (CONTRACT TERMINATED)
Penn Line Services Inc $442,457.60 $70.13  $70.77 $71.82
Townsend $464,713.60 $73.25 $74.36  $75.81
Asplundh Tree Expert Co. $479,211.20 $75.95 $76.79 $77.65
The Energy Group $562,473.60 $87.49  $90.11  $92.82
Nelson Tree Service NO BID N/A N/A N/A

NG Gilbert NO BID N/A N/A N/A




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 24, 2013

Q‘ST. ]9]2

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: September 19, 2013

Subject: Lansing Contract Power Purchase - 2014

In accordance with the contract between Traverse City Light & Power (“TCL&P”) and Lansing
Board of Water & Light (“LBW&L”), TCL&P is required to reserve monthly blocks of energy
from LBW&L by October 1% of each year for the next calendar year (this year LBW&L has
extended that deadline to November 1%). TCL&P entered into this power purchase agreement
with LBW&L to provide power from 2011 through 2015 (often referred to as a “bridge” contract)
due to the Michigan Public Power Agency power pool being dissolved at the end of 2010.

The decision on what quantity of power to purchase from LBW&L for base block energy and
peaking block energy is an important one that requires expertise in power supply and power
markets. The decision has a significant financial impact on the utility. For these reasons, I have
contracted with Mr. Bob Dyer of RTD Consulting, LL.C (he was the generation/power purchase
expert for the Hometown Efficiency Study) to analyze TCL&P’s system requirement for 2014.
Mr. Dyer will be in attendance at your meeting to educate the board and the public on the
requirements of the LBW&L contract, discussion of TCL&P’s system requirements, and to
explain his recommendation to staff for 2014 purchases from LBW&L.

In addition to this presentation, I will be requesting of the Board to provide input to staff on
information it will need in order to make informed decisions on providing staff direction in
addressing long-term energy supply for the utility. The LBW&L contract is set to expire at the
end of 2015; TCL&P must notify LBW&L one year in advance, or by December 31, 2014, if it
intends to extend the Agreement or not. Part of that decision making process may involve a
decision from the Board regarding local generation — to pursue it or be a power purchaser? If a
power purchaser, what type of contracts to purchase? Long-term, short-term, small or large
quantities, renewable energy — how much?

This meeting will essentially be the kickoff meeting to the larger power supply decisions that will
need to be made over the next 18 months. I will be prepared to outline for the Board a plan on
educating, analyzing, and coming to decision points that will include a timeline for making some
of these critical decisions for the utility.

This agenda item is expected to be a lengthy discussion that I estimate will run from 45 minutes
to 1 hour.




@
RTD CONSULTING, LLC

September 12, 2013

Timothy J. Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
Executive Director

1131 Hastings St.

Traverse City M1 49686

Re: Power Supply recommendation for 2014
Dear Tim,

We have completed our analysis of the requirements for the TCLP system for 2014. In the course
of this analysis we have looked at a number of scenarios that have been used to “bound the
problem”. Attached is a detailed report that goes through the assumption, modeling techniques
and scenarios investigated. The goal was to provide you with recommendations to the following
questions:

o Does Traverse City have sufficient capacity to support their capacity obligations?
o See the table below for the estimated capacity purchases required to meet TCLPs
obligations monthly for 2014:

Month Available Capacity (Mw)* Month Available Capacity(Mw)*
Jan 2014 00 Jul 2014 9.2

Feb 2014 0.3 Aug 2014 -11.5

Mar 2014 1.2 Sep 2014 -8.0

Apr 2014 3.6 Oct 2014 -3

May 2014 1.8 Nov 2014 3.7

Jun 2014 -12.6 Dec 2014 1.4

Note 1: a negative quantity indicates a shortage of capacity.

2771 Monument Road Suite 29, Box 337, Jacksonville, FL 32225
(904) 607-1875
BobD@RTDConsultinglic.com | www. RTDConsultinglic.com




September 12, 2012 page 2

e What is the risk of riding on the MISO spot market?

o There is some risk to market price for energy form MISO. The prices in the MISO market
would have to increase significantly before its average would exceed the prices
available from LWBL in their existing contract. In addition, the Kalkaska CT remains a
good hedge against large market prices increases. The principal driver for cost in MISO
is natural gas prices and while it is only a forecast, there does not appear to be any
significant short term forces that would cause significant price increases in the
foreseeable future (through 2014).

e What are the appropriate contract volumes strikes for the Lansing Base Block, Peaking Block
and Peaking Option Block contracis?
o TCLP should continue to take the minimum required under the LBWL contract. This
should result in TCLP maximizing its cash flow with the Risk Exposure being decreased
over other available options. ‘

e What options are available to displace additional contract volumes andfor MISO spot
transactions?
o There were other options investigated. Financial Forward contracts and Out of the
Money call options were evaluated. While they produced results more favorable than
increasing the LBWL contract, they are not recommended.

e How do different contract choices affect the cash flow and risk profile of the portfolio?

o Due to the nature of the TCLP portfolio there is limited risk and limited options to
improve cash flow. The limited risk is a direct result of the Kalkaska CT. All of the
choices available to TCLP do not significantly improve the risk and in some cases, actual
increase risks while decreasing cash flow. Therefore, no additional contracts are
recommended.

The attached report is provided to you and is the support for the recommendations made above. After
you have reviewed the report, please feel free to contract me with any comments or questions. Also, |
will be in your office on September 24, at 10:00AM to meet with you and later that day with your Board
to discuss this report.

Sincerely,

TN

R. T. Dyer

2771 Monument Road suite 29, Box 337, Jacksonville, FL 32225
(904) 607-1875
BobD@RTDConsultinglic.com | www. RTDConsultinglic.com

11



2014 Power Supply Assessment
For
Traverse City Light and Power

TCLP Management Review

Prepared by

Robert Dyer
Mike Jones
September 12, 2013

TRAVERSE CITY

@3] LIGHT & POWER

12




Assessment Overview

A one year, hourly economic dispatch model has been used to evaluate Traverse City Power
and Light's (TCLP) expected power supply position and to assess the potential risk to that
position, if actual market conditions vary significantly from the forecast values. Additionally,
the capacity needs of TCLP were assessed with a basic capacity balance of contracted resources
compared to the forecast load and reserve requirements.

The purpose of the TCLP Portfolio Assessment is to establish the optimal portfolio for the
upcoming calendar year, in order to support the appropriate notifications to Lansing for the
Block Purchase Agreements and to investigate other market products that could be used to
offset either additional Lansing purchases above minimums or MISO market exposure. Specific
questions to be answered include:

e Does TCLP have sufficient capacity to support their capacity obligations?

e What is the risk of riding on the MISO spot market?

e What are the appropriate contract volumes strikes for the Lansing Base Block, Peaking
Block and Peaking Option Block contracts?

e What options are available to displace additional contract volumes and/or MISO spot
transactions?

e How do different contract choices affect the cash flow and risk profile of the portfolio?

General Observations

The current TCLP Portfolio is a highly constrained portfolio with few dispatchable resources.
This results in a portfolio with little downside risk, since the current contract positions have
been locked in and are sufficient to meet the vast majority of TCLP’s needs. The variability that
should be expected is the upside benefit when markets become favorable for dispatching
resources like the Kalkaska CT.

As the current contract with Lansing concludes in coming years, Traverse City will experience an
opportunity to lower its production costs, but with that opportunity could also come
substantially increased risk. RTO style markets reward participants who bring operating
flexibility and wide dispatch ranges to the market. They tend to penalize must take units
(wind), units with long minimum run times and long start times.

RTO style markets disaggregate capacity and energy transactions, such that, when a generator
sells capacity to counterparty in the MISO market, the operator of the generator incurs an
obligation to offer that unit into the market, not to deliver energy from it to the purchasing
entity. As a result, a utility has the option to purchase capacity only and then simply take
energy from the spot market (or more appropriately, purchase their energy from a separate
entity). MISO will decide whether it wants the capacity unit online or not and will pay the
generator appropriately. This results in a fairly robust financial energy market with an

13




underlying bilateral capacity market and allows for capacity auctions where the buyer and seller
are unconcerned as to who is purchasing the capacity.

Major Modeling Assumptions

The model assumes operation of current generation will not differ significantly from historic
performance and that the performance of the City’s wind resources will not affect its decision
on how to dispatch resources into the market. Due to the desire to contain costs and the fact
that wind resources are independent of dispatch decisions, a wind model was not developed
and the wind resources were considered to be outside the scope of this study, with the
exception of their contribution to the City’s capacity needs.

An estimate of the impact of the Heritage Wind Project on the TCLP net cash flow, assuming
that the cost of Heritage is $109.24 (from June 2013 Energy Purchase Invoice) and most of the
power is generated and sold during off-peak hours is shown in Table 1 below.

Table 1 - Estimate of Wind Net Revenue by Capacity Factor

Capacity Factor

Month 5% 10% 20% 30%
Jan-14  $(28,918) $(57,835)  $(115,670)  $(173,506)
Feb-14  $(25,680) $(51,360)  $(102,719)  $(154,079)
Mar-14  $(29,155) $(58,310)  $(116,621)  $(174,931)
Apr-14  $(27,164) $(54,327)  $(108,655)  $(162,982)
May-14  $(29,701) $(59,402)  $(118,805)  $(178,207)
Jun-14  $(28,224) $(56,448)  $(112,896)  $(169,344)

Jul-14  $(27,988)  $(55,977)  $(111,953)  $(167,930)
Aug-14  §$(27,841) §$(55,683)  $(111,366)  $(167,049)
Sep-14  $(28,384) $(56,768)  $(113,537)  $(170,305)
Oct-14  $(29,543) $(59,086)  $(118,172)  $(177,258)
Nov-14  §$(27,897) $(55,793)  $(111,586)  $(167,380)
Dec-14  $(28,973) $(57,946)  $(115,893)  $(173,839)
Annual $(339,468) $(678,936) $(1,357,873) $(2,036,809)

Other assumptions include:

e Assets that were considered in establishing the TCLP’s current net cash flow and risk
profile include: TCLP’s portions of Belle River 1 & 2, Campbell 3, Kalkaska CT, Granger
Landfill Gas, the City’s Native Load obligations and the minimum take quantities from
the Lansing Base Block, Peaking Block and Peaking Option Block agreements.

e Due to the limited scope of the study and the random nature of forced outages, thus
making them unfavorable for hedging, a forced outage model was not developed for
this study. The financial risk of a forced outage is an outstanding risk outside of these
results.

14




e Assets that were considered to meet additional needs include taking more than the
minimum quantities from the Lansing Base Block, Peaking Block and Peaking Option
Block agreements and purchasing financial forward and monthly call option products
from the market.

e Based on historical patterns, all generation except Kalkaska was dispatched around the
clock, with Kalkaska being economically dispatched into the market.

e The monthly call options were economically struck with perfect foresight of the spot
market price.

Risk Model

The risk model used for this assessment is a deterministic, hourly, one year dispatch model
using pre-determined risk scenarios to evaluate incremental changes in cash flow between
scenarios with cash flow at risk being defined as the difference between the scenario being
evaluated and the base scenario set at the expected system conditions. Some important
definitions in this model include:

Deterministic — Discrete input values (as opposed to a stochastic distribution) are
applied to a production costing model to determine a single point solution for each

scenario.
Benefits

e Easily understood scenarios — deterministic models provide a solution for
a specific set of conditions that are easily identified and understood (i.e.
what happens to cash flow with an increase in gas price of 10%).

e More easily modeled than stochastic solutions — deterministic solutions
for small systems are capable of being modeled in spreadsheets or other
small scale solutions, rather than a commercial production costing model,
thus reducing study cost.

e It is easier to trace causality for a specific outcome through the
underlying model, which make the results more easily explainable.

e Required much smaller historic data sets (5 to 10 times smaller) to
parameterize the input model.

Limitations

e Provides a limited solution set — if a specific set of conditions was not
specifically selected as a scenario, the results of those conditions will not
be represented in the solution set.

e Solutions are discrete, rather than continuous, therefore, the results of
variations outside of the solution set are unknowable, without modeling
them.

e Unable to address the interactions of larger, more complex and
interrelated systems.

15




Deterministic modeling was selected for this study due to the limitations on delivery
time, cost of study and amount of historic data available.

Scenarios — Descriptions of a set of input conditions that are applied to a production
costing model to evaluate how a system will behave under that set of conditions. The
input variables defined in the various scenarios in this study include natural gas price,
electric market price and load volume. Due to the short term nature of this study (one
year) and the relative stability of coal prices recently, coal price was assumed constant.
For this study a total of nine {9) scenarios have been considered, as described below:

Scenario 1 - Expected Case— This scenario represents the most likely conditions
based on what is currently known about market conditions for the study period.

Natural gas price is set at the monthly expected value of the EIA short
term forecast model. The use of monthly prices could understate the
volatility of the model slightly, but given the use of the model, the cost of
development of a daily volatility model was not worthwhile.

MISO market price is set at the forward price curve. Due to the
availability of products in the market at this time, pricing for December
2014 was unavailable and has been estimated based on available data.
Hourly volatility of the market and the daily price shape is estimated
using historic MISO data. This data is then adjusted to set the average
price to the market forecast.

Load volume is set to the load provided for the TCLP system. Hourly load
volatility is set to the same base year as the market prices to estimate the
effect of load volatility on the system, while maintaining the effect of
correlation between load and market price caused by weather events.

Events where Load and Market Prices are not Correlated — Certain events can
occur in energy markets which are uncorrelated with system load, but can have
an impact on cash flow. An example of this type of event is a movement in
natural gas price which typically causes a correlated move in electric prices, but
typically does not affect native load.

Scenario 2 - Moderate Market Increase — This scenario represents the effect
of a moderate price increase without a change in the underlying system
energy consumption.

e Natural gas price increased by % of the EIA high gas case

e MISO market price increase proportionate to the increase in natural
gas price

e Load volume unchanged from expected case

Scenario 3 - Large Market Increase — This scenario represents the effect of a
large price increase without a change in the underlying system energy
consumption.

e Natural gas price increased to the EIA high gas case

16




e MISO market price increase proportionate to the increase in natural
gas price
e Load volume unchanged from expected case

Scenario 4 - Moderate Market Decrease — This scenario represents the
effect of a moderate price decrease without a change in the underlying
system energy consumption.

e Natural gas price decrease by % of the EIA low gas case

o MISO market price decrease proportionate to the decrease in natural
gas price

e load volume unchanged from expected case

Scenario 5 - Large Market Decrease — This scenario represents the effect of a
large price decrease without a change in the underlying system energy
consumption.

e Natural gas price decrease to the EIA low gas case

e MISO market price decrease proportionate to the decrease in natural
gas price

e Load volume unchanged from expected case

Events where Load and Market Prices are Correlated — As opposed to the
events described above, Traverse City can also experience events that have
correlated effects where load, fuel prices and market prices move together. An
example of this is an extended departure from normal weather. Since marginal
prices in MISO tend to follow the marginal price of natural gas, these scenarios
move the fuel and power market proportionaily.

Scenario 6 - Moderate Correlated Increase - This scenario represents the
effect of a moderate load increase correlated with an increase in the
underlying market conditions.

e Natural gas price increased by % of the EIA high gas case

e MISO market price increase proportionate to the increase in natural
gas price

e Load volume increased by 1.5%

Scenario 7 - Large Correlated Increase - This scenario represents the effect of
a large load increase correlated with an increase in the underlying market
conditions.

e Natural gas price increased to the EIA high gas case

e MISO market price increase proportionate to the increase in natural
gas price

e Load volume increased by 3%

17




Scenario 8 - Moderate Correlated Decrease - This scenario represents the
effect of a moderate load decrease correlated with a decrease in the
underlying market conditions.

e Natural gas price decrease by % of the EIA low gas case

e  MISO market price decrease proportionate to the decrease in natural
gas price

e lLoad volume decreased by 1.5%

Scenario 9 - Large Correlated Decrease - This scenario represents the effect
of a large load decrease correlated with an increase in the underlying market
conditions.

e Natural gas price decrease to the EIA low gas case

e MISO market price decrease proportionate to the decrease in natural
gas price

e Load volume decreased by 3%

Cash Flow — Net cash flow is the metric typically used to evaluate the risk to a system
with load and generation assets. As opposed to production cost, net cash flow
recognizes the natural hedge that load serving utilities have to volumetric risks such as
weather events. Models that ignore load revenue tend to provide distorted views of a
utilities risk profile and can lead to detrimental hedging decisions.

Cash flow measures generally include all of the variable revenues and costs associated
with the components of the portfolio being analyzed. When converting this measure to
a budget or power supply cost measure, it is common to include a fixed cost adjustment
to the net variable cash flow, such that the cash flow numbers being evaluated are more
typical of the complete cash flows that the decision makers are used to seeing. Because
much of the fixed cost structure of the utility is unknown to those outside its operations,
this adjustment is typically performed by the utility after the study is complete. This
fixed cost adjustment is not relevant to the risk analysis, but can make the cash flows
more meaningful to the decision maker, when they are in the range of the cash flows
that they expect to see.

Typical components of the net variable cash flow include the variable components of:
revenue from retail load (energy and/or demand), revenue from off-system sales,
variable operations and maintenance expenses of operating generation units, the
expense of off-system purchases, the expense of purchasing fuel, the revenue from
excess fuel sales, the expense of procuring transmission and transportation, etc.
Typically any sunk costs or revenues would be included in the fixed cost adjustment
performed by the utility. A graphical example of how these charges combine to create a
cash flow can be seen in Figure 1.

18




N xgggggﬁj\x/\_-f\xf\

Relall Load? Off-System Power Price Cff-System Power Price
Salgs* Purchases™
- Other
- x / \ - X = Costs**

Spot Coal Spot Coal Spot fat. Gas Spot Nal. Gas
Price Consumgption* Price Cansumption®

" S

il
Cash Flow* Cash Flow*

*Dependent on System Makeup
=*YOM, G&A, fixed fuel purchases, debt service, nondiscretionary distributions
Emissions costs currently modeled deterministically

Figure 1 - Cash Flow Calculation Example

Risk Measures - The energy industry primarily utilizes two classes of risk management
metrics to measure the exposure of a utility portfolio to risk: Value at Risk (VaR) and
Cash Flow at Risk (CFaR).

Value at Risk (VaR) - Measures the maximum potential change in the value of a
portfolio, during a specified period of time, with a specified degree of
confidence. VaR is generally measured over very short time horizons of one to a
few days. Therefore, a 10 day VaR 95% of $ x-amount would correspond to
there being a 95% probability that the value of the portfolio will decrease by less
than $ x-amount over the next 10 day period. Conversely, there is a 5%
probability that the value of the portfolio will decrease by more than $ x-amount
over the next 10 day period. VaR measures were developed by the financial
trading markets and are widely used in purely financial markets (like the stock,
bond, and money markets) where there is a very high degree of liquidity and
almost any position can be liquidated within the VaR reporting period being
monitored. Physical asset portfolios typically have very poor liquidity. Because
VaR looks at such a short time horizon and assumes high liquidity, it is generally
considered an excellent measure for primarily financial asset, easily liquidated
portfolios and a poor risk measure for mostly physical asset, illiquid portfolios.

Cash Flow at Risk (CFaR) - Measures the maximum shortfall in cash flow (below
a target level), during a specified period of time, with a specified degree of
confidence. Due to the nature of CFaR being used to monitor the risk involved in
holding illiquid assets, CFaR is generally measured over time horizons of months

19




or years. Therefore, a 12 month CFaR 95% of $ y-amount would correspond to
there being a 95% probability that the cash flow generated by a portfolio of
assets will not be less than $ y-amount below the target value at the end of the
12 month period. Note that CFaR does not indicate how bad cash flow can get
during that 12 month period, but that at the end of the period, there is a 95%
probability that the good and bad cash flows that occur will net out to no less
than $ y-amount short of the targeted value. CFaR assumes that all positions are
held to delivery and is better suited to measuring the risks of holding portfolios
of physical assets and illiquid commodities.

Due to this study being deterministic in nature, rather than stochastic, rather
than using a continuous distribution with the 95% confidence interval defining
the lower bound for cash flow at risk, the worst case scenario is used to define
this measure.

A graphical example of Cash Flow at Risk is shown in Figure 2.

Targeted
------- Cash Flow at  [---creesfoeecteesXmnnencened caeh Flow [
5t percentile

Probability

= d

Cash Flow

Figure 2 - Cash Flow at Risk Example

As stated above, CFaR is measured relative to a target value. In its most general
usage, this target value is typically set to the expected value of the cash flow
distribution of the reference system being evaluated. In the more specific case
of measuring Budgeted Cash Flow at Risk (BCFaR), the target is changed to be
the budgeted value that is of interest.

For the purpose of this assessment, the study will be measuring Net Cash Flow
and Net Cash Flow at Risk. The target value for these measures is the cash flow
of the current portfolio with only the minimum volumes taken from the Lansing
Block Agreements. In future studies, if TCLP chooses establish a Budget Cash
Flow Target, then that budget value would become the cash flow target each

20




budget period. Assessment of that budget target is beyond the scope of this
assessment. The target for this assessment is the cash flow of the current
portfolio.

Budget CashFlow at Risk

—— =

Initial Case

\\/ Transaction Case

Expected Cash Flow of Initial Case (or Budget

95CFaR For
Transaclion

Probability

95CFaR Initial Case

-95CFeR Transaction Case

95CFaR For Budget
A95CFaR

Case

Agmj)<

el

' Cash Flow

Figure 3 - Budget Cash Flow at Risk Example

Risk Metrics — This study uses two primary determinants for determining whether a
combination of resources in a portfolio is preferable to another combination of resources,
cash flow and cash flow at risk. It also uses the absolute value of the ratio of cash flow at
risk to cash flow to compare the magnitude of the risk to reward tradeoff.

An increase in net cash flow is favorable.

A decrease in cash flow at risk is favorable.

If net cash flow increases and cash flow at risk decreases, the change is considered
favorable.

If net cash flow decreases and cash flow at risk increases, the change is considered
unfavorable.

If cash flow increases while cash flow at risk decreases, the ratio of risk (cash flow at
risk) to reward (net cash flow) is compared to the ratio of the expected case to
determine if the reduction in risk is worth the cost of the hedge.

If cash flow decreases while cash flow at risk increases, the ratio of risk (cash flow at
risk) to reward (net cash flow) is compared to the ratio of the expected case to
determine if the increase in risk is worth the increase in expected cash flow.

21




System Modeling

General Model Description

The TCLP portfolio includes all resources (generation and contract purchases) and
obligations (load and contract sales) provided by TCLP, Lansing and MPPA, with the
exception of the wind resources. The wind resources were not included since there was
no need for TCLP to incur the cost of a wind forecast model, since operation of wind
resources in an RTO market is typically one of a price taker and does not affect the
dispatch of the system. All generators and loads are cleared in the market at the local
spot price. Purchase and sale markets are unconstrained volumetrically and allow full
interchange of power to and from the market.

The real-time electric markets are structured to reflect non-firm energy markets.
These markets provide no capacity (or ancillary services) and respond to
reliability events that would adversely affect the system.

All unit operation is cost based. Costs are defined as all variable costs associated
with the production of power including: variable fuel cost, variable cost of
emissions, variable cost of operations and maintenance, and any other cost
identified by the member as relating directly to the number of unit startups and
shutdowns or to the MWh'’s of generation delivered from the unit.

In order to constrain study cost, the effect of forced outages was excluded from
the modeling effort.

Any relevant emissions costs are assumed to be in the pricing information
provided.

10

22




1T

“19pinoad |eussIxa Jayloue y3noay o 10esuod Suisue] ela pajjiy 9q Aew asay) ‘Aued
jeusaixe ue y3noayy Sunoesauod alinbad jm eyl AN 9°ZT 03 dn Jo 19qo10Q ySnouayy aunf Supnp “udyap Aldeded e smoys
3ouejeq Auoeded ¢7)1 8yl S324N0S3J PIDLRIU0I/PBaUMO AjJusiind Jiay3 Suizijian syjuow T jo £ Auoeded juapiyns sey 4101

ésuonpbiqo Aopdpa J1ay3 1oddns 03 Adpdpa Jua1a1fIns anby 4771 Saoqg

uoneAlasqQ

d¥| >joag 43d Juswalinbai aA1s9Y e

[2POIAI AD Bs4aAeL] HTOZ VddIA 241 Ul 3seda.oy peoj ay Jad Ajoeded jjun pue peojdead e

Janddns jeusaixa

ysnoay3 Jo 1oeJjuod 3uisue ysnodyl pajji aq pjnoys uouap Aloede) -joysp Anodeded e saledipul Ayoeded saneSauy e

A

§°89
L0

6'9€
70T
80T

T'Ls
V'L
9'6v

¥i-99a pTI-AON

L'E

S'8S
L0

6'9¢
70T
80T

8'rs
L
L'Ly

€0

589
L0

6'9¢
0T
80T

8'8s
L'L
718
VI-10

o8-

S°8S
L0

69¢
T°0T
80T

§'99
L8
6°LS
y1-dag

S'11- (A
S89 589
L0 L0
69¢ 69¢
10T ToT
801 80T
0°0L L9
T6 88
809 6'8S
vI-8ny  pI-Inf

9°¢t-

S'8S
L0

69¢
10T
80T

T'IL
€'6
6’19
2t

81

985
L0

6'9¢
10T
80T

L'9S
v'L
€'6v
vT-Aein

9t

§'8S
L0

6'9¢
T'0T
80T

6'7S
(474
L'y
pr-ady

T

S'89
L0

6'9¢
7ot
80T

€'LS
S'L
6'6v
vi-ieiN

€0

§'85
L0

69¢
70T
8'0T

<'8s
9L
909
vi-934

00 » HoaQ Aoede)
S°'8S jelol
10 sa|gemauay
6'9€ 1D exsexyje)
70T € |1eqdwe)
80T J3Aly 3|°g
5'8G juswadinbay
97 %ST EEVSEREN
609 peoTead
yT-uer aouejeg Ayoede)

"wa1sAs 4101 ay3 40y paseda.d usaq sey aosuejeq Ayodeded Suimoj|o) aY3 ‘JPOIA 10T VddIAl 2Y3 Ul papiroad uoreusiou

3yl Uo paseg ‘uldiew aAIasaJ %GT e shid peoj Ajyuow yead say) Joj Aloeded 4oy 19843U02 U0 UMD 01 d1DL Sa4inbal OSIA

aoueeyq Ajpede) walsAg Jua.LIn) - Z 3jqeL

23



Current System Risk Profile

The current portfolio has an expected cash flow of between $1 and $1.6 million per
month and a cash flow at risk of less than $58,000 for most months. Overall the CFaR
for this portfolio appears to be fairly low, due to the limited dispatchability of the
portfolio and the quantity of fixed resources available. It is important to note, however,
that this low CFaR is an artifact of the construction of the portfolio and will become
significantly larger once the current contracts have expired. CFaR in a portfolio is a
measure of the uncertainty of future cash flows. When a portfolio is highly constrained,
cash flows become highly predictable. The constraints built into this portfolio are
primarily due to the mix of resources supplying the obligations. The resources are
primarily contract power operated by other parties, with limited operating flexibility.
Hence, TCLP is not able to gain any of the operational flexibility of determining which
resources should be committed for the operating environment. As a result, cash flows
become constrained and it is likely that operating costs are higher than would be
realized if this operating flexibility were present. Depending on the terms of the
relevant contracts, TCLP may not be exposed to other operating uncertainties such as
labor costs, maintenance costs, etc.

Observation
What is the risk of riding on the MISO spot market?

Based on the tight constraints of the current portfolio and the strong hedge provided by
the Kalkaska CT, the risk of riding on the MISO spot market is fairly low in all of the
scenarios studied.

12

24




€T

SOLIBUIDE SNOLIEA 10J MOL] Yse) A[qIuofA] -  oanS1]

NSIY 1e mojd ysed Ajyauon

95BUoU| PIR[DII0D 98UET
ENCEV I RENINIEY: F:y E—

3529109 P1BISII0D BFUET e DSEIIU| PIR|DII0D) DIBJDPOIA e DSEDIOD( POIL|DIIOD) DILISPOIN] s

25e3.132q 1a)Je\ 9847 s OSEIJIOU| 1M JBIA| D11 PO s

Uwyuwn_xmlll

9583.103(] 1Bl DIBIDPOIN] e
Sy 18 MO|4 YSey) mmmm

Nﬁ 3 2 5 g L 9 S v £ z T

..% T ] i L L : . | - 1 B OOO~OomW
000°0Z$ - — - - -
000°0v$ - o
000095 - - 000°00T‘T$
000°08% e 000'00€'T$

SRR u,.»f

- 000°005'TS
000°0ZTS 000'00£'T$
000°0%TS ooo.oomd

mold yse) Ajyyuopy

25




Electric Energy Market Modeling
Spot Market

The electric energy market model is made up of spot purchase and sale markets
designed to represent the behavior of the hourly spot markets. The electric energy
markets are modeled based on historic hourly behavior. The expected value of the
electric energy markets has been set to the forward price curve at the Michigan Hub and
localized to other nodes by using historic marginal congestion and marginal losses in the
MISO market. The uncertainty in the electric price markets is based on historic data
from the MISO market.

Potential Forward and/or Option Contracts

Potential forward and/or option contracts have been evaluated for purchase of electricity
during each month of the study. The contracts analyzed are for the purchase of financial
and physical electric blocks of power. The specific contracts analyzed include increasing
the quantities taken under the Lansing Base, Option and Peaking Option contracts,
financial forward contracts at the Michigan Hub and monthly financial option contracts at
the Michigan Hub. Results of these analyses are provided in the results section below.

14

26



ST

"(30r13U02 Y1 Ul SuiSeSus Aq Xsi4 9d1ud jeuonippe

sandut AJj1an SYy3) sasea.oul ysi 18 MOJ} Ysed pue (1a34ew ay1 Aq pauanial saolid ay) anoge A)jian ay3 03 3500 18U B dARY ||e

27

S1EIUO0D BY}) OLIBUSIS Pa1dadxa B Ul S9SeII3P MO[) YSeD 13U ‘Sadue)sul ||e U] - 85D aseq 3y s AN Y3 Joj anjea 3saq ay |

yRojguondo uplead O 72 0T  %Z9 = 95879 (9sz'101) TIVELT SEE'SET'ST
uum_m ..a_ﬁo Supjead ()4 L ot %EY 65975 an@wv ¥I2'S9Z ¥86'67ZST
- yoojg uondg Supjead ot L OT = %iS Sve'es (tr1'€0T) 008692 08p'eeT’sT
*20jg uondo unjead or L ot %L5 5.8'6Y (yvv'28) 625092 SrT'6vrT'ST
*20jg uoido Bupiead 0T L )4 %9E LY0'ET (819'%9) Z09EET €L6'TLT'ST
%201g uopdo Bupjeay ot L 0T %P €8E°L (089'2s) LE6'LTT 0T6'€82'ST
3120]g uopdo Bunjead " ot 572 0T %S5 - pL5'9v (T90'v8) 6CTLST 625'7SZ'ST
yo|g Sim Bunjead ot L o %bS L0Vt (65t'08) 796952 © ZET'05T'ST
3pP0(g uondo Supjead 0T L ot %9 8£0°s9 (016'T0T) 2E9'SLT T89vET'ST
¥o0g uondg Supjeaq o1 L 0T %b9 1€5'T9 (€59'96) 580712 LE6'6ET'ST
¥o0|g uopdo Supjead ot L or %L9 ¥65'65 (818'88) 8p10LZ TLLLYTST
}20ig uondo Burjead ot L ot %69 00t'€9 (z0g'26) vS6'ELT €82'pZ'ST
5j00jg Bupeagd ST ot %9L 604687 (805°ER9) £97°00L 280°E69PT
" 3oojg aseg L 0z HIVT 29zeel't  (ers'oze’t)  9I8'ZEGT 8L8'STIYT
001104 3U3LINY i : g ot $55°0T2 - '0BS'9EE'ST
TN TIN OTN 6N BA LN SN SN BN EN TN TW  wol@  polg  opey ¥ed Mol yse) ity MOl yse)
uonpdo aseg u a8ueyd u) 28uey) 1B MOJ4 Yysed oleuads
ojleuass

"¥o01q uondo Sunyead A[yiuow yoes pue }oo[q Jursead }oo[q aseq oY} Jo sannuenb oty Suiseaour Jo sisk[eue
Y} [relop sau jusnbesqng JUSWSIZY Jomod aseyoIng Suisue] ay) WOy sannuenb 10eIU0d WNUIUIN 9Y) PUB SIUn JTDL [[B
s ofjopIod JULLIND SY} JO S)NSAI SISA[EUR Y} SMOYS U0 SUIT ‘sjoenuo)) Jyooig uond Suryesq pue yoo[g Sunesd “ooig
oseq Sulsue] oy} woy 1omod jo sennuenb [euonippe Sunye; Jo sisA[eue 2y} JO SHNSSI AU} SAJBNSUOWSP 3[qe) SUIMO[[O] oYL

JUIWIITY J2M0 ] 3SeYIINJ SUISTRT 9Y} JOPUN SIPNUEBNY) [RUOHIPPY JO dseydIng — € 3jqel

S1OB.1U0) JL1109]F [ENIU}0d JO SIsA[euy



9

"O1JBUDIS SWIES Y3 UI JNJJ0 S}I3uaq pue

S Y3 4O || J0U || 2IUIS SAINPPE 10U S 3SH 18 MOJ4 UYSED INg ‘PaUlEyD 2Je SI0BIIUO0D USYM SAIMPPE S| MOJ} Ysed ul agueyd
33 121 310N "SIOBJIUOD DY} JO YIB3 1O} S258D409p YSII 18 MOJ} yseD "pausisap se A[10a.440d Suizesado s| |spow ay3 1ey
solepljeA os|e sfy] "3seda10) 3dLd 8y} 4O} pash sanjen sy se 3d1id SWes DY) I8 189S e SIOeIU0D BY3 404 S31d plemio) sy
S0UIS (SJOIJD JJO PUNOJ 318 S3OUBIBYIP) OlieUaIS pajoadxa 3y) Ul USAS Yealq punole JOAOY SOLIBUSIS 3S3Y) 10} MOJ4 YSed 19N

9IXGVAL 0T

%ESO'STT

926'00T

989'9EE‘ST

or otT T RO S OL e 0T S 0T AT R 0T N O ot L ot (6z9'60T)  67'S6

9IXSVaL 0T L ot %608'89 (yve'se) (z£:59) TI22LY SES‘9EE'ST
9TXS VAL - or L OT - %/BE6 (186'1€) 8T'EE YLS'8LT 729°9EE'ST
9TXS V3L ot L oT %LEL'TY (s6L'sv)  (w60L) 092991 0CS9EE‘ST
9TXG VaL ot L ot %BLE'VY (s8v'LE) (Lr'v8) 690°ELT 905'9EE’ST
9TXS VaL ot L ot %L8€'80T (zes'ty) (ze'ge) 220’691 T5S'9EE'ST
9TXS ViL ot L ot %TSB'LE (LTv'sp) 86'61T LET'SOT OTL'9EE"ST
9TXG ,E. 0T /2 ot xmum.,ow (9zp'LE) (6%°19) 6ZT'ELT 67S'9EE'ST
9TX5 VAL ot i ot v .xmmm.mu (ext'ov) LE'TY 2hy'0LT TS9'9EE'ST
9TXS VaL ot i ot RIEL'TT {zoo'ce) LZ0LT 25S'ELT TIL'9EE'ST
9TXS vaL [1)4 L ot %8199 (690°S€) (66°25) S8v'SLT LES'9EE'ST
9TXS ViL ot L or %959°LST (502°62) (es'8T) 8VE'T8T TLS'9EE'ST
9TXS VaL ot L ot %90T'T€ (000'62) £6'26 - vSS'I8T €899EE'ST
-01jof10d Juatin) i : el s L ot ‘ .. bssotz 065'9€'ST
ZIN TIN OTW 6N 8A  ZW 9N SN PN SN TN TIN Fojg Ao|g oney yedd Mol ysed A5ty 38 Mol4 ysed
uondo aseg uy aduey)y uj a8ueyd MO[4 ysed 0lleuads

oleuaas

"syyuour Apnys Y3 Jo [[e Jo dn opewr dLs pIesio] [RIOUBUI] € S [[oM SE ‘SYJUuour APnys oy} JO Yoes 10§ ‘qny UeSIyoIn
Y} 0} P3ISAI[RP JOBNUOD PpIemio} [eueuly e uiseqoind Jo SISA[eur oU) JO S}NSSI Y} SSILISUOWSD 3[qe) SUIMOI[0] SYL

qny ueSIYIIIA] 9Y) I8 SIORIJWO)) PIBAIO] [RIOURUL] JO 3seqdIng - p ajqel

SIOB.IIUO0Y) JLIIII[F [ENIUN0J JO SISAfeuy

28



L1

"OHBUSOS 3WES B3 Ul JNJJ0 S3143USq PUR SHYSI Y} JO |8 10U ||B 3DUIS SAIPPE 10U S S

18 MOJ} Ysed Ing ‘pauleyd a.e s10e1U0d USYM 2AIIPPE S| MOJ Ysed Ul aSueyd a1 1ey) 310N '3]genjeA awodaq pue pasagsis

S48 5308.U00 33 Y31y 3Wodaq s3d1d UBYM 3SNEIB] ‘S198.1U0D BY) 4O YIRS 10} S3SE3J03 Y1 18 MO)} YSB) OLIBUIS

pa102dxa a3y} ul paJad8u1 10U ale pue pied aq 01 winjwaid e a4inbau |e suondo ay) aduis (3ax4eW 2y} Aq pauinial saoud
31 9A0QE A}j1IN BY1 01 1500 19U B DARY ||B S19BIIUOD 3Y31) olieudds padadxa Sy Ul SISEBIIBP MO|) YSED JaUu ‘saouelsul [je uj

" WLOZ$ VAL
W10 78 vaL

W10 Z$ Vil

W0 2§ vaL
L0 2 VaL
W10 Z$ vaL
N10 Z$ ViL

WO ZS VAL

L0 Z$ vaL
WLO 28 vaL
W10 Z$ ViL
W10 Z$ VaL
|01j03104 JUBInY

INLO Z$ WAL

0T ot (T2 AR AT S SO A ARy 4 N e L 0T %Eer 7 (pgoroen) (T6v'08)  Tev'06 0OTOvZST
oT. j L fo) %I9E {8zs'ty) (£18TT) £20'69T VL0'SZE'ST
(1)4 L 0T %IvE (8v8'ST) (ges’s) 90LT6T 8S0'TEEST.
0T L 0T %0Tp {s62'62) ] (e£12)  6Sz'IST TSP'62EST
o1 L ot %ZET (z6v'12) (vL2's) €90'68T LIE'LZE'ST
L ot %Y (ozz'sz) (esg’ot) YEE'LBT 8EL'SZE'ST
L ot %TTT (z60'92) (sgz'zT) 29v'v81T 90€‘ee'sT
72 0T %b0E (crr'ee) (¥652) THP'I8T  [66'S8ZEST
L Or  %zov Aav'ez) (tzg') ZYLE]T 0LL/62€'ST
ot L 0L  %LO0p (8¢0p2) (v16's) 905'98T LL9'OEE'ST
ot ‘ 0T %sop (rvv'se) (ove's)  TITz8T SYS'0EE'ST
ot L ot %LET (865°0T) (s00'2) 9S6'E6T 785'6Z€E'ST
ot VA ot %beT (895YT) (z189) 986'S6T 8L0'0EE'ST
7k ()48 : yss'ote 065'9€E'ST
TN TIN OTA 6 YA EN ZN TN yoolg  yojg oney ¥eqd Mol yses sty e Mmoyd ysed
uondo aseg uf a8ueyd u| aduey) MO}4 ysen OJeuadg
oueu3dS

"Syuow 4prys ay3 o [fe Jo dn spew dis pIremio] [BIOUBTI] © SE [[aMm SB ‘syguot £prys 8y Jo yoes 10§ ‘qni ueSyonA]

0 03 pasAT[ep oenuoo uondo [eroweuy e Suseyomd jo sisAfeue oy Jo symsal oY) SelenSuOWSp 9[qe} SUIMO[[0} oY

Asuop a1 30 0 00°Z - qNH UESIYRI 943 1€ sPELU0)) nond() [EUBUL JO SSEYING - § 3|qeL
$1PB.LUO0) JLIPIS[F [BNIUN0 JO SISA[euy

29



"OLIBUSDS SRS 33 U INJI0 S1y2UaQ PUB SYSH B3 JO [|e 10U [|B 3JUIS SAIIPPE 10U S| sl

18 MOJ} Ysed Inq ‘pauleyd a.e S10BJ1U0I USYM SAINPPE S| MOJJ Ysed Ui a8ueyd ay3 18y 910N “S|gen|en awo0daq pue palassiny
3l $30843U02 33 ‘YSIY 3W023Q sa01d USYM 3SNEIA] ‘S1OBIIUOD BY] JO LIRS 10} S9SED.JIP YSI4 18 MOJ} YSBD) OlIeuads
pa30adxa ay3 ut pasadsLl) J0u aue pue pied 8q 03 Whiwald e aJinbal ||e suordo ay3 aduis (3ay4ew oY1 Ag pausnyaa saoid
3yl 3A0qe AN BY1 011503 13U B 3ARY ||E S19BJ3UOD 3Y)) OLEUSIS Paldadxa sy u S95e3.109P MOJ} Ysed 1au ‘saouelsul |je u)

WEOSS VAL

L0 §$ VAL
WLO S$ VAL
INLO S8 V3L
NLO S$ vaL
NLO 5% VaL
WLO 5 vaL
WLO 55 V3L
“INLO 5§ VAL
NLO §§ VAL
INLO §§ V3L
WLO §$ V3L
INLO §$ V3L

aiopiod 3usaiing

G O TR (O WA S o 02 R e i e VAT %8Lz (188951 (v£9°s5) v£9'SS LT6°082'ST
or L ot %yTh (¥85'vT) (0zse) TL6'S6T 0£0'€EE'ST
: or ! L [5) WPLE {8g0'zt) (zez'e) 9TS'86T 89E'EEE'ST
ot LT HEES (e8e'12) (tTo'm) TAT'68T 6LS°ZEEST
ot L oT %9ET (£€S'vT) (6v1°9) 810961 TrY'DEE'ST
ot L 0T %9TCT (66£°sT) (r6s'L) SST'P6T LB6'8TEST
ot L ot %02CT (ezt'6T) (v69'8) CEV'TET 968°2Z€'ST
ot L 0T %SpE ' {686'ST) (2€9%) 995'P6T . KS6'TEE'ST
ot (L =) -%STS (682'02) (v98'E) 992067 9TLTEE'ST
ot L o %S (pez'ot) {891'€) onLqmﬁ Z2y'EEE'ST
o1 L ot " wises (sTT/9T) (066'7)  9ev'v6T 009'SEE'ST
ot L 0)4 %6EC (8£8%) (8zT'Y) 9£9'00Z 29Y'ZEE'ST
ot L ot %S8T (¥28') (969°€) 0EL'E0Z V68'ZEE'ST
L [0)3 8501 06S'9EE'ST
N TIN OIN BN 8N LW 9N SN PN EN TN T olg oney ¥edd Mmol4 yse) sty 38 Mol yse)
u o|g uf a8uey) uy 38uey) Moj4 ysed [IFIERIN
ondp E) [IIITELTS

seq

"SqpuowW Apnys 1) JO [1e Jo dn spewr dLiys PIemMIO] [EIOUBUY B SE [[oM SE ‘SYIUOW Aps oy} Jo Yoes 10J ‘qnp ueSmyoIA

St 03 pataalep Joenuod uondo [eroueuy e Swiseygomd jo sisA[eue oYy Jo s)nser Sy} SSTENSUOWSP O[qE) Suimorqoy oy

A3uo a3 30 INQ (0°SS - qUH UESIYDIIA 93 € SPBRIUO)) uondQ [enurUL] Jo aseydang - 9 d|qe]
S}0e.IIUO) DL [ENIUI0J JO SISA[euy

30



61

"OLIBUSIS SWES 3] Ul JNIJ0 SIIBUSQ PUE SHSLI Y1 JO [[B 10U [|B SDUIS SAIUPPE 10U S| S

18 MO} Ysed Ing ‘pauleyd ale 10U USYM SAIIPPE SI MOJ) Ysed ul 98ueyd ay3 1eyl 310N '3|qen|eA awodag pue patassiiy
3Je S10BJ1U0D BY} ‘YSiY 3W033q $301id UaYM asNeIaq ‘S10B41U0D Y] JO YIBD JO) SOSBIIIDP MSII 1B MOJ} Yse) *OLeuads
pa3dadxa ay3 ui paadsL) Jou ale pue pied aq 03 wnjwaud e aiinbai [je suondo ay3 aduls (334ew ay3 Ag paulnial sao1d
9yl an0qe A}1|fan 3yl 01 150D 19U B dARY [|e S10BJIUO0D SY1) OlIBUSS Pa13adxa Sy} Ul SISea109p MO[L YSed 12U ‘S3oueisul jje u)

WLO £$VAL

W10 £S VL
INLO £8 VL
WLO £$ VAL
W10 LS Y3L
W10 £$ VAL
WLO £$ V3L
WIOZ$vaL
NLO 28 V3L
CNL0 LS YAl
WLO £$ vaL
W10 £$vIL
W10 L5 VaL

'0jjo3464 Ju3IIND.

O ioT ot O DR TR O L RERI0 Vom0 SN0 LI O TR O N O JAsE otr %T6c  (v6T'LTY) (eze'or)  T9EE6 PIE'962'ST
ot L or %6vE - (009°8) (¥9v'7) 556'T0C 9ZTYEE'ST
ot L ot %E0E - (106'9) (0822) $S9°E0C OTE'VEE'ST
ot L 0T %9gs  (roz'sT) (v€8T) £5E'S6T LSLEEE'ST
ot L o1 %g0z  (62'6) (9€5'p) SZT'T0T $S0'ZEE'ST
ot L ot %v6T  (€6E'TT) (088's) 29T'66T OTLOEE'ST
ot L ot %E0Z (€T6'ET) (v989) T¥9'96T 9ZL'6TE'ST
(08 L 0T %cee  (eT9'on) (e6z'e) 'Tv6'66T BBC/EEE'ST
ot L 0t %6vs  (SvLvT) (8892) 0T8'SHT ‘ZOG'EEE'ST
OT L otr %905~ (0zEoT) (zv0'z) vE2°002Z 6YSVEE'ST
ot L 0T %s  (wron) (sT6'T) 080002 SL9'VEE'ST
ot L ot %I9T {769'%) (z16'2) 098's02 8L9'EEE'ST
ot L ot %SE (r16) (0£5'2) £79'602 TZOvEE'ST
T o1 755012 065°9EE'ST -
TIN TIW OTW 6N 8A 4N 9N SN BN EN TN TN Polg o8 oney ¥eqd Mmoj4 ysed ysiyze moj4 ysed
uondp aseg ul aBueyd uy a8ueyd MO|4 ysed [JI-IERIN
[eI¥[=TERIN

‘sypuowr Apnjs oy} Jo [1e Jo dn spew dins premio] [IOUBUT] € SE [[oMm Se ‘Syjuotu Apnjs Sy} JO Yoes 10J ‘qnp UeSIydIA]

9} 03 paIsAl[ep ‘oenuoo uondo [eroueuy e Suiseyomd Jo SISA[EUR oY) JO S)MSSI OU} SOILISUOWSP O[qe} SUIMO[O] YL

AduoyA] Y3 Jo I (0°L$ - qNH UESIYPIIA] 31 € spdejuo)) uond( [erouruly Jo oseydang - Z d|qel
SIJB.IIUOY) JLIIII [E1IU310J JO SISA[euy

31



Observation

What are the appropriate contract volumes strikes for the Lansing Base Block, Peaking
Block and Peaking Option Block contracts?

How do different contract choices affect the cash flow and risk profile of the portfolio?

Each of the Lansing contract options decreases net cash flow and increases risk for the
TCLP portfolio. These are both unfavorable to the portfolio. Taking additional
quantities from the Lansing contract in not recommended.

Observation

What options are available to displace additional Lansing contract volumes and/or MISO
Spot transactions?

How do different contract choices affect the cash flow and risk profile of the portfolio?

Each of the Michigan Hub forward contracts is ideally cash flow neutral for the expected
case and reduces cash flow at risk in the most unfavorable scenario. Each of the options
contracts cost the utility some of its net cash flow (the option premium) and reduces
cash flow at risk in the most unfavorable scenario. While technically beneficial, due to
the limited amount of risk in the current portfolio, adding any of these contracts to the
current portfolio is not recommended.

20

32




Guidelines to consider when taking portfolio positions in ISO markets

While we strongly believe that detailed resource modeling is the prudent method of evaluating
system risk tradeoffs, the following guidelines identify some of the key risks that were observed
in the modeling.

Real-time prices are significantly more volatile than either day-ahead or forward. As a
result, transacting the base load portion of the portfolio in forward markets tends to
reduce risk.

During periods when system cost is near market prices or there is large volumetric
uncertainty (daily peaks), forward transactions tend to add risk to the portfolio. This
effect is due to the margins on a spot trade being relatively stable while on a forward
transaction, one leg of the trade becomes fixed and may become stranded in actual
practice. With the risk of fuel price movement and the chance of a forced outage, system
risk increases. A portion of this effect can be mitigated by locking fuel prices at the same
time that a forward sale is transacted.

This study evaluates the quantity of transactions that are recommended to mitigate risk.
It does not look at when those transactions should be made. Much of the research
available indicates that it is prudent to programmatically place hedges on over a period of
time (this is a form of diversification), such that a single market event does not adversely
impact the portfolio value.

As contract resources are replaced, keep in mind that the modern ISO markets pay well
for portfolio flexibility. Being able to commit and de-commit units, having highly
dispatchable assets or contracts, and having wide dispatch ranges are favorable in these
markets.

It is typically favorable to keep hedged fuel volumes in quantities and time periods
typically consumed and below the expected consumption levels. Over-hedging can add
as much risk to a portfolio as under-hedging.

Portfolio diversification through time is beneficial to the portfolio. Keep some of the
portfolio in the forward markets, some in the near term markets and some in the real-time
markets to optimize portfolio performance. Layer in purchase contracts over time, rather
than reacting to adverse events or trying to time the market.

While these guidelines do not replace risk modeling, they do provide some rules of thumb that
can reduce the overall risk to a portfolio.

21

33



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 24, 2013

gST. 19]2

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Jessica Wheaton, Marketing & Community Relations Coordinator
Date: September 18, 2013

Subject: Customer Outage Feedback Survey

TCL&P staff uses the bi-annual, statistically significant customer satisfaction survey to gage overall
customer satisfaction when it comes to items such as rates and reliability, but we believe it would
also be beneficial to have some real-time data reflecting customer satisfaction after an electrical
power outage. Therefore, staff has developed a short survey that would request customer feedback
after they experience an outage.

Because it would be too administratively burdensome to ask for feedback after every outage, staff
will select approximately one outage every quarter to follow up on. Staff will send out a postcard to
customers notifying them why the outage occurred and request their feedback by taking a brief online
survey.

Attached is the draft postcard communication and online survey. It is staff’s hope to implement this
feedback tool by the end of 2013.




swpedsq 497101
‘noA yuey

"suosanb Aue Yim 0y6%-226-1£2
1B 497101 10EJUOD BSE3|4 "SIaW0]}SNO 1IN0 10 |je 2AISS I8)Jag sn Q_mr_ pue

S2IAISS JBW0)SND 1O JuswaAoIdWl SNONURUOD UM 49101 ISISSE ||IM YOBgPaa) JINOA

yoeqpasqebein/Bio-djoymmm
‘Je auljuo punoy} ASAINs jauq e ul Sjedidnied pue jusuiow e 3e)} asesid

‘seafojduwa Aujn yum pey aaey Aewl noA uonoesaiul Aue
YlIM PBISIIES S19M NOA Jou 10 Jaylaym pue abeno ayj 0} papuodsal Smald 497101
MOY U0 yoeqpaayl InoA ajealdde pinom (d910L) Jamod 9 Wb Ao asianel )

Joieapp]  UBPIOOY BJ0d/IeD[] @8Il [] [ewly[] ainjied juswdinb3r) (0}
anp ssauisng 10 auwloy JnoA 1e abejno Jamod [ealos)e ue padsualiadxa noA Ajjuadsay

‘]awo)sn) panjep Jeaq

joeqpasay abenQ Jamod [ea1339]3 42101

35



TCL&P Electrical Power Outage Feedback Survey
TCL&P Electrical Power Outage Feedback

* 1. Please rate your overall level of satisfaction regarding TCL&P’s
response to the power outage?

"+ Very Satisfied
1 Satisfied

"+ Neutral

7 Dissatisfied

i Very Dissatisfied

* 2. Did you call in and report the power outage to TCL&P’s 24-hour
dispatch center?

v Yes
» No
"+ Tried, but could not get through

3. If yes to question 2, please rate your level of satisfaction regarding
your interaction with the dispatcher?

" Very Satisfied
7 Satisfied

+ Neutral

"+ Dissatisfied

"+ Very Dissatisfied

* 4. Did you have any interaction with a TCL&P field crew (example:
linemen) during the power outage?

1 Yes
+ No

9/18/2013

36




TCL&P Electrical Power Outage Feedback Survey

5. If yes to question 4, please rate your level of satisfaction regarding
your interaction with the field crew?

-+ Very Satisfied
+ Satisfied

i+ Neutral

i+ Dissatisfied

.+ Very Dissatisfied

6. Please provide any additional feedback regarding the power outage
that would be beneficial for TCL&P.

7. If you would like a TCL&P representative to follow up with you

regarding the recent power outage, please provide the following
information:

Name: ] |
Address: | |
Email Address: | ]
Phone Number: | |

Done

Powered by SurveyMonkey
Check out our sample surveys and create your own now!

9/18/2013

37




